## POYNTON SPORTS CLUB TENNIS SECTION: BYE-LAWS



- 1. The Committee. The section shall be run (subject to the jurisdiction of the Club Executive Committee) by a Committee which shall consist of the Chairman, Vice -Chairman, Secretary, Treasurer, Membership Secretary, Club Coach, Junior Section Representative (inc Junior Membership), Match & Ball Representative, Ground Committee Representative, Social Representative, Clubmark & Public Relations Representative, and up to 3 other people. There will be a maximum of 14 people on the Committee. A Committee member may have more than one role. The Committee will run the club according to the principles of the LTA Clubmark. The Committee shall be elected annually on the occasion of the Section Annual General Meeting.
- **2. Quorum.** A quorum will consist of 5 Committee members. Should a quorum not be formed, the meeting should proceed without controversial issue and be ratified at the next Committee meeting.
- 3. Annual General Meeting. The Section AGM shall be held no later than 30th November of each year. Copies of the agenda shall be forwarded by e-Mail or post to each senior member, giving 14 days notice. Only senior members shall be allowed to vote at the AGM. A notice providing for the nomination of officials and members of the Committee shall be displayed on the main notice board in the club hut approx 28 days before the AGM.
- **4. Special General Meeting.** A Special General Meeting of the section may be called by the Committee or any senior member on presenting a proposal duly seconded and endorsed by not less than 20 senior members. The secretary must notify all senior members by e-Mail or post of the meeting and proposal, giving a maximum of 21 days notice.
- <u>5. Senior Members.</u> There are two divisions of senior members. Intermediate members are aged 16 to 17 or aged between 18 and 21 and in full-time education. An adult member is anyone else aged 22 and over, or aged 18 or over and not in full-time education. The qualifying date is the membership renewal date of 1<sup>st</sup> April Membership is by annual application accompanied by payment of the appropriate subscription.
- <u>6. Young Members.</u> There are two divisions of young members. Mini members are aged under 9 and Junior members are aged between 9 and 15. In both cases the qualifying date is the membership renewal date of 1<sup>st</sup> April. Mini members using the courts must always be accompanied by a senior member (usually the coach or a parent). Young members are to provide their own balls, except for sessions under the direction of the coach and do not have access to the club hut. Membership is by annual application accompanied by payment of the appropriate subscription. **Parent Block Guest** is not an official membership category, but is in place to allow a parent / relative / guardian of a junior member to use the tennis courts (only when accompanied by the associated junior member).
- 7. Shoe Tags. The wearing of supplied shoe tags is compulsory for members under the age of 18.
- **8. New Members.** A new member will be allowed 4 playing sessions before the annual subscription becomes due.
- **9. Subscriptions.** Subscriptions are payable to the section membership secretary and are due on or before April 30th each year. The amount of subscription due and methods of payment shall be determined each year by the Committee acting on the recommendation of the section. Senior members joining the Club after 31<sup>st</sup> Aug shall be entitled to a reduction of 50% off the full subscription.
- 10. Visitors. Visitors are permitted to play on the invitation of a senior or junior member, but no single visitor is permitted to play on more than 4 occasions. Visitors' fees will be reviewed from time to time by the Committee. Members will be notified of any changes. Details will also be provided in the visitors notebook located in the club hut.
- 11. Team Selection and Match Play. The Match and Ball Secretary shall be responsible for the appointment of Team Captains. It will be the Captains' responsibility to select their teams based on ability, willingness to play and availability. Matches for senior members will be arranged by the Match and Ball Secretary. Matches for junior members will be arranged by the Junior Section Representative. Each shall arrange for the respective fixture lists to be displayed on the notice board as soon as possible. When matches are in progress, club play may be permitted (subject to the concurrence of the match teams) on other available courts.
- <u>12. Times of Play.</u> All social and organised play sessions are updated on our website under the 'Playing Times' section. The calendar is also kept up to date to reflect court bookings for both coaching sessions and social play. These details are sent to new members to advise them of what is on offer. Tennis Camps are often

# POYNTON SPORTS CLUB TENNIS SECTION: BYE-LAWS



organised during school holiday periods throughout the year. During these periods the use of the courts is restricted. The Committee reserve the right when necessary to close or reserve one or more of the courts and they may close the courts if they are considered unfit for play.

All Weather Courts:- The all weather courts are available for use by full junior and senior members for the 6 summer months of the year (April to September). Junior members can use the all-weather courts during the summer months on week-days between 9am and 6pm and have priority on a Friday evening up to 10pm. On all other evenings and at weekends, junior members may play only if courts are not required by adult members. During the remaining 6 winter months (October to March) the courts will be available for use as and when they are booked and paid for by the Committee. The 6 month dates shall be set by the Club Executive.

**Hard Court:**- Block bookings for regular coaching sessions will have priority. Outside of these times the court is available for social play.-Courts 6 & 7 can be booked for use via the website. Court 5 is a drop-in court and therefore cannot be booked.

### 13. Court Etiquette.

#### Do:-

- Wipe your feet on entering the courts
- Wind down the nets when you have finished playing
- During the 6 month Winter period fold and store the nets correctly in the club hut
- Store measuring sticks and chairs etc in the club hut after playing

### Do Not:-

- Enter the courts when the ball is in play
- Walk across a court when a point is being played
- Shout across a court when a point is being played
- Leave litter on the courts
- Ride bicycles on the courts or park bicycles at the side of a court
- 14. Dress. All players are required to dress in clothing suitable for tennis. When playing for the club in representative matches, players are expected to wear recognised tennis attire. During inclement weather tracksuits and waterproof layers are acceptable. Footwear must be suitable for the court surface both to protect the player from injury and to prevent unnecessary wear and tear of the surface (for example studded shoes are specifically not allowed).
- <u>15. Keys.</u> Keys to the all-weather courts and the club hut are available to senior members. There is a nominal charge for keys required for the main gate. The Chairman, Team Captains and Coach shall also hold a key for the main floodlights for the all weather courts. Spare keys are also kept in the main clubhouse.
- **16. Balls.** Balls are provided for the use of senior members. Balls must be brought back to the club hut after each session. It is the responsibility of the Team Captains to ensure that balls used in Home Team matches are left in the club hut after the match for integration into the general play stock.

### 17. LTA Compliance.

- **17.1** As a result of the LTA becoming an incorporated association from 1<sup>st</sup> October 2011 and that the Tennis Section is registered as a 'Places to Play' club with the LTA, it is a requirement that all members agree, as a condition of membership:-
  - (a) To be bound by and subject to the rules of the Tennis Section defined in these bye-laws; and
  - (b) To be bound by and subject to the rules and disciplinary code of the LTA (as in force from time to time).
- 17.2 Rule 17.1 confers a benefit on the LTA and, subject to the remaining provisions of this rule, is intended to be enforceable by the LTA by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999. For the avoidance of doubt, the members do not intend that any term of these rules, apart from Rule 9.1 should be enforceable, by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999, by any person who is not a party to this agreement.
- 17.3 The Committee may terminate the membership of any person, or impose any other sanction they determine to be appropriate, in connection with the breach of any condition of membership set out in the rule.

# POYNTON SPORTS CLUB TENNIS SECTION: BYE-LAWS



17.4 The Tennis Section agrees that each member of the Committee will be required, as a condition of election of appointment, to agree to be bound by and subject to these rules, the rules and Disciplinary Code of the LTA (as in force from time to time), such agreement to contain an express acknowledgement that the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 applies and that the LTA and the Tennis Section can enforce any breach at its option and in its sole discretion.

17.5 The Tennis Section agrees that all unlicensed and unregistered coaches and, so far as reasonably practicable, players and others persons using the Tennis facilities of Poynton Sports Club will be required, as a condition of such use, to agree to be bound by and subject to these rules, the rules and disciplinary code of the LTA (as in force from time to time), such agreement to contain an express acknowledgment that the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 applies and that the LTA and the Tennis Section can enforce any breach at its option in its sole discretion.

Details of the rules of the LTA can be found here: https://www.lta.org.uk/about-the-lta/policies-and-rules/

Details of the LTA disciplinary code can be found here:-

https://www.lta.org.uk/globalassets/about-lta/lta-disciplinary-code.pdf

**18. Floodlights.** The use of floodlighting is free for members. All members have access to the hard court floodlight key pads. A key is required to access the all-weather court floodlights.

#### Application of Rules.

The above bye-laws are applicable (as far as is relevant) to all categories of section member.